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The Blue Mountain College Historic District includes fourteen " buildings on the campus of 
the Baptist college for women in northeast Mississippi giving the district its name, and 
occupies an approximately forty-acre tract elevated from the main road. Although a variety 
of architectural styles from the turn-of-the-century down to the present are represented, 
the district nonetheless exhibits considerable visual cohesiveness. The majority of build­ 
ings are of brick construction and are well placed in their environment, which consists of 
undulating terrain rising up the slope of Blue Mountain, a physical feature to which build­ 
ings are adapted by construction of high basements and a varying number of stories. 
Contributing to the cohesiveness of the district are the orientation of the buildings, 
arrayed in a semicircle around the administration building, and the curving pathways which 
serve to link the buildings. Photographs from the 1920s reveal that the walkways were once 
roofed, and that a covered walkway connected the second floors of two buildings. Four bricl 
gateways define the south and west borders of the district, while a road and high ridge 
mark district boundaries on the east and north. Since only one intrusion exists in the 
district, the visual integrity of the district may be "-said to be preserved.

Buildings Located within the District

1. Lawrence T. Lowrey Administration Building. 1928. Colonial Revival. J. M. Spain, 
architect. Three-story twenty-seven by-seven-bay brick building with a central 
projecting section and projecting end bays. Arcaded entrance beneath portico.

2. Pascal Student Union. 1970. Modern, articulated in classical idiom. Jernigan,
Hawkins, and Harrison, architects. One-story six-by-two-bay brick building with hip 
roof and undercut gallery supported by brick piers. Trabeated window and door openings 
filled with plate glass occupy most of the wall space. (Intrustion).

3. Lowrey Memorial Baptist Church. 1908. Eclectic, some Colonial Revival features. 
Two-story seven-by-seven-bay brick structure with pyramidal hip roof, gable-roofed 
projecting central section, and four-story square tower with pinacled corners. 
Segmental-arched windows.

4. Stewart House. 1946. Colonial Revival features. One-and-a-half-story four-by-two-bay 
brick cottage with carport. Narrow shutters with colonial-type candle-in-holder motif 
in raised design.

5. Garrett Hall of Fine Arts. 1950. Colonial Revival details* Dudley C. White, architeci 
One-story nine-by-twelve bay brick building constructed around an auditorium. Corner 
bays project. Entrance recessed in a projecting central-entrance bay. Paneled reveal.

6. Guyton Library. 1957. Some Prairie School features. Walter R. Nelson, architect. 
One-story five-by-six-bay brick building with projecting central entrance articulated 
by large concrete squares. Two small glass-block windows flank entrance.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Blue Mountain College Historic District in northeast Mississippi encompasses the campus 
of the Baptist four-^year school from which the district takes its name, the oldest college 
for women in the state. Buildings within the district record changing styles in institu­ 
tional architecture as well as the evolution of the use of the campus from 1900 to 1970. 
The majority of buildings are architect designed and illustrate various trends in American 
architecture: eclecticism of the turn of the century, the popularity of the ColoniajL Revive 
style, in which buildings continued to be constructed on the campus through the 1940s, and 
the influence of Frank Lloyd Wright,evident as late as 1960. Perhaps even more Important 
is the visual continuity of the district, achieved through use of 1920s streetlamps, curved 
pathways to connect buildings (added 1912, 1922), and brick gateways to enclose the area 
(added 1930). Contributing to the cohesiveness of the district is the excellent situation 
of buildings in the natural environment and the use of compatible massing, materials, and 
details to blend later and earlier buildings.

Blue Mountain College was founded in 1873 by Mark Perrin Lowrey, Baptist preacher and Civil 
War general, who along with his two daughters composed the faculty of what was then known 
as Blue Mountain Female Institute. Leadership of the college remained in the Lowrey family 
until 1960, although ownership of the college was transferred to the Mississippi Baptist 
Convention in 1918. Lowrey*s oldest daughter, Modena Lowrey Berry, who served as principal 
of the college for over sixty years, was the second woman in state history named to the 
Mississippi Hall of Fame.

The earliest buildings now standing on the campus are representative of the second period 
of building construction in the history of the college and reflect by their fireproof brick 
construction the prosperity and status of Blue Mountain College at the turn of the century. 
(Mostof the early buildings on the campus, of frame construction, had been destroyed by 
fires in 1900 and 1928..) Although architects of the earliest brick buildings are unknown, 
they likely had some association with the college, as have the architects of later buildings 
J. M. Spain, of Jackson, Mississippi, who designed the administration building in 1928, was 
a friend of Dr. Lawrence T. Lowrey, then president of the college. Dudley C. White, who 
designed Garrett Fine Arts Building (1950) was the son of Mary 
Ella Hearn White, alumna of Blue Mountain College who donated the final $4,000 needed to 
construct the administration building. (Accreditation of the college hinged on the construe 
tion of a new administration building,) Walter R. Nelson, Memphis architect who designed 
six buildings on the campus between 1928 and 1962, was reared at Blue Mountain by Mrs. 
James Buchanan, a teacher at the college. Others have contributed smaller material improve­ 
ments, which also serve as tangible reminders of the history of the college. A marble 
fountain between the administration building and Lowrey Hall was donated in 1922 by the 
Eumonian literary society, whose members were earlier responsible for the installation of 
electric lights in Lowrey Memorial Church. Another literary society, the Euzalian, donated
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION The district, outlined in red on the accompanying sketch map, 
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Congregation of Lowrey Memorial Baptist Church
c/o Dr. E. H. Fisher, Chairman, Board of Deacons /
Main Street
Blue Mountain, Mississippi 38610

-7 - DESCRIPTION

7. Whitfield Hall. 1928. Colonial Revival. Walter R. Nelson, architect. Three-story 
thirteen-by-three-bay brick building with central entrance and portico. Projecting 
end bays. Quoined corners. Door surround with side lights and semielliptical fanlight

8. Whitfield Dining Hall. 1928. Colonial Revival. Walter R. Nelson, architect. Two- 
story eight-by-four-bay brick building constructed on a cruciform plan with a central 
entrance and a gallery supported on square paneled columns. Columns salvaged from 
original administration building, to which they were added in 1912.

9. Hearn Jennings Dormitory. 1903, addition 1923. Eclectic, with Colonial Revival
interior details. Two-story seven-by-three-bay brick building with projecting gable- 
topped polygonal third and fifth bays with hinged brick corners. Hip roof and square 
cupola; segmental-arched windows; central entrance.

10. Broach Hall. 1940. Colonial Revival. Leake and Goodlett, contractors. Two-story 
brick building constructed on an H-plan. Gabled roof with gabled dormers. Squared 
columns, central entrance.

11. Carpenter Home. 1949. Robert Scott, contractor. One-and-a-half-story three-by-three- 
bay brick cottage with central entrance and gabled entrance porch. Entrance flanked 
by shutters.

12. Armstrong Home. 1939. Colonial Revival. Walter R. Nelson, architect. Two-and-a- 
half-story five-by-two-bay brick house with side wings. Two-story projecting gallery 
topped by balustrade. Central entrance with side lights and semielliptical fanlight. 
Brick guesthouse-garage located just west of house.

13. Lowrey Hall. 1900. Eclectic. Three-story thirteen-by-four-bay brick building with twc 
projecting towers topped with mansard roofs. Corbeled cornice; square cupola; 
segmental-arch windows.

1^1 Sumrall House. Ca. 1915. Colonial Revival. One-and-a-half-story three-by-four-bay
hip-roofed cottage with high basement. Irregular plan with projecting bays on rear anc 
sides. Bay on west side terminates in a jerkinhead roof; others in gabled roofs. 
Cresting with antefixae on roof ridges. Central entrance with side lights and transom
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8 - SIGNIFICANCE

the marble slab which adorns the front of the church, and erected a brick gateway at the 
main entrance to the college. These landscape features, together with the complex of 
buildings on the campus, form a unique atmosphere which, despite the existence of modern 
structures, conveys a pervasive sense of the history of Blue Mountain College.

9 - MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Buchanan, Jr., James, former business administrator of Blue Mountain College. Interviewed 
by Adele Cramer, architectural historian with the Mississippi Department of Archives 
and History, Jackson, at Blue Mountain, Miss., Dec. 6, 1978.

Mississippi Department of Archives and History, Jackson. Statewide Survey of Historic 
Sites. Tippah County. Blue Mountain College.

Mississippi State Building Commission, Jackson. Physical Facilities; Institutions of 
Higher Learning. 1969.

Sumrall, Robbie Neal. A Light on the Hill; A History of Blue Mountain College. Blue 
Mountain, Miss.; privately printed, 1947.

LO- VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

continues to Sand Road and then moves north along Sand Road to meet Mountain Street.
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